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NOTICE OF 31°T (THIRTY FIRST) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 315" (THIRTY FIRST) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (315" AGM) OF
BEHRAM CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, 25™ JULY, 2024 AT 12.30 P.M.
(IST) AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT CONFERENCE ROOM NO. 24, “GODREJ ONE”,
3%° FLOOR, PIROJSHANAGAR, EASTERN EXPRESS HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI (EAST), MUMBAI — 400 079,
MAHARASHTRA

[MEETING SERIAL NO.: GM/1/2024-25]

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2024:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Statement of Profit & Loss, Cash Flow Statement for
the Financial Year ended 315 March, 2024; Balance Sheet as at that date; the Auditors' Report
and the Directors' Report thereon, including Annexures thereto.

2. Appointment of Mr. Anurag Roy (DIN: 07444595), as a Non-Executive Director, liable to retire
by rotation, who has offered himself for re-appointment:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Anurag Roy, Non-Executive Director [having Director
Identification Number (DIN): 07444595], who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment as a “Non-Executive Director”:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, of Mr. Anurag Roy, Non-Executive Director (DIN: 07444595), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a
“Non-Executive Director” of the Company.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Behram Chemicals Private Limited

Sd/-

Anurag Roy

Director

(DIN: 07444595)
Mumbai, 30% April, 2024

Registered Office:
“Godrej One”, 3™ Floor, Pirojshanagar,

Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli (East),
Mumbai— 400 079, Maharashtra, India



NOTES:

1.

A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM”)
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF / HERSELF, AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY.

Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a Proxy on behalf of not
more than 50 (Fifty) Shareholders and holding in aggregate, not more than 10% (ten per cent) of
the total share capital of the Company. Shareholders holding more than 10% (ten per cent) of the
total share capital of the Company may appoint a single person as Proxy, who shall not act as a
Proxy for any other Shareholder. A proxy so appointed shall not have any right to speak at the
Meeting. The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than 48 (Forty-Eight) hours before
the commencement of the AGM. Proxy Form is annexed to this Report. Proxies submitted on
behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution /
authority, as applicable. Corporate Shareholders intending to send their Authorized
Representative(s) to attend the AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, are requested to send
to the Company, a certified true copy of the Board Resolution together with the respective
specimen signatures of those representative(s) authorized under the said resolution to attend and
vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of
names will be entitled to vote.

During the period beginning 24 (Twenty-four) hours before the time fixed for the commencement
of the AGM and ending with the conclusion of the AGM, a Shareholder would be entitled to
inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company between 10.00
a.m. (IST) to 4.00 p.m. (IST).

Shareholder(s) / Proxy(ies) / Authorised Representative(s) should bring the duly filled Attendance
Slip enclosed herewith to the AGM.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding, maintained under
Section 170 of the Act, will be available for inspection by the Shareholders at the AGM.

The Register of Contracts and Arrangements, in which the Directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, will be available for inspection by the Shareholders at the AGM.

Route Map showing directions to reach to the venue of the 31% (Thirty First) AGM is given at the
end of this Notice as per the requirement of the Secretarial Standards - 2 on “General Meetings.”

As per the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) dated 27" October, 2023,
a Private Company, which as on last day of a Financial Year, ending on or after 31 March, 2023,
is not a small company as per audited financial statements for such Financial Year, shall, within
eighteen months of closure of such Financial Year i.e. 30" September, 2024 shall issue the
securities only in dematerialised form and facilitate dematerialisation of all its securities. Hence,
all the Shareholders are requested to get their Physical Shares dematerialized through their
respective Depository Participants (DP) by mentioning the Company’s ISIN i.e. INEO3W901013 and
can raise any further queries to behram.chemicals@godrejastec.com.




ATTENDANCE SLIP

3157 (THIRTY FIRST) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Registered Folio No. / DP ID
and Client ID

Name and Address of the
Member(s)

| / We, hereby record my / our presence at the 31% (Thirty First) Annual General Meeting of the
Company at the Registered Office of the Company at Conference Room No. 24, “Godrej One”, 3™
Floor, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli (East), Mumbai — 400 079, Maharashtra on
Thursday, 25t July, 2024 at 12.30 P.M. (IST).

Member’s Folio / Member’s / Proxy’s Member’s / Proxy’s Signature
DP ID- Client ID Name in BLOCK Letters

Notes:

1. Please fill up the details of the Folio / DP ID- Client ID and Name and sign this Attendance Slip and
hand it over at the Attendance Verification Counter at the ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL.

2. Members are requested to bring this slip along with them as duplicate slips will not be issued at
the venue of the Meeting.




Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Folio No./ DP ID - Client ID

| / We being the Member(s) of Behram Chemicals Private Limited holding Equity Shares
of the Company, hereby appoint:

1. Name: Address:

E-mail ID: Signature: or failing him/her;
2. Name: Address:

E-mail ID: Signature: or failing him/her;
3. Name: Address:

E-mail ID: Signature:

as my / our proxy and to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us on my / our behalf at the 31 (Thirty
First) Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held Thursday, 25 July, 2024 at
12.30 P.M. (IST) at the Registered Office of the Company at Conference Room No. 24, “Godrej One”,
3" Floor, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli (East), Mumbai — 400 079, Maharashtra
and at any adjournment(s) thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No. Resolutions

Ordinary Business

1 Adoption of Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2024.

Appointment of Mr. Anurag Roy (DIN: 07444595), as a Director, liable to retire by
rotation, who has offered himself for re-appointment.

Signed this day of 2024

Affix
Revenue Stamp
of Rupee 1 Only

Signature of Shareholder:

Signature of Proxy Holder(s):




Notes:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 (Forty-Eight) hours before the commencement of the
Annual General Meeting.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on a poll instead of himself / herself and proxy need not be a Member. A person can act as a Proxy on
behalf of not more than 50 (Fifty) Members and holding in aggregate, not more than 10% (Ten
percent) of the total share capital of the Company. Members holding more than 10% (Ten percent) of
the total share capital of the Company may appoint a single person as Proxy, who shall not act as a
Proxy for any other person / Member. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies,
etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable. A proxy so appointed
shall not have any right to speak at the Meeting.

For the Resolutions, please refer to the Notice of the 31% (Thirty First) Annual General Meeting.



BRIEF RESUME OF DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE

31° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY

Name of the Director

Mr. Anurag Roy

Director Identification Number (DIN) 07444595
Date of Birth 06/07/1974
Age (in Years) 49 years
Nationality Indian

Date of First Appointment (DD/MM/YYYY) | 26/10/2021

Qualification

Mr. Anurag Roy has MBA from Columbia Business
School in New York, USA, Masters in International
Business from Indian Institute of Foreign Trade in Delhi,
India and B. Tech, Chemical Technology (Polymers
Science) from Harcourt Butler Technological Institute in
Kanpur, India.

Nature of expertise in specific functional
areas

e Strategy & Business

¢ Industry & Market Expertise
¢ Technology Perspective

* Governance, Finance & Risk

Number of Board Meetings attended
during the Financial Year 2023-24

4 (Four) out of 4 (Four)

Shareholding in the Company

Nil

Directorships held in other Companies

Astec LifeSciences Limited

Chairmanships and Memberships of
Committees in other companies

Astec LifeSciences Limited:

Managing Committee - Member

Relationships between Directors inter-se

None

Terms and conditions of appointment / re-
appointment along with details of
remuneration sought to be paid and
remuneration last drawn by such person

No remuneration payable

%k %k %k %k
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

To,
The Members of
BEHRAM CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 31 (Thirty First) Annual Report together with the Audited
Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

Your Company’s financial performance during the Financial Year 2023-24 as compared to that of the
previous Financial Year 2022-23 is summarized below:

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue from Operations - -
Other Income 16.82 13.19
Total Income 16.82 13.19
Total Expenses 1.85 1.97
Profit /(Loss) Before Tax 14.98 11.22
Less: Current Tax 3.66 2.67
Less: Deferred Tax 0.11 0.15
Less: Adjustment for Tax of previous years - -
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 11.21 8.40
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) - -
Total Comprehensive Income - -
Surplus Brought Forward 61.19 53.52
Amount transferred to General Reserve - -
Dividend - -

Your Company has earned Other Income of Rs.16.82 Lakh during the Financial Year 2023-24. The Company
has posted Net Profit After Tax to the tune of Rs.11.21 Lakh, as compared to Profit After Tax of Rs.8.40
Lakh in preceding Financial Year 2022-23.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS / STATE OF AFFAIRS:
Your Company’s objects are to engage itself in the manufacturing of agrochemicals.
Your Company holds a plot of land on long term lease from Maharashtra Industrial Development

Corporation (MIDC) in Mahad, Maharashtra, which it has further sub-leased to Astec LifeSciences Limited,
the Holding Company.
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During the Financial Year under review, there was no change in the Company’s objects or nature of
activities.

Your Company has managed its affairs in a fair and transparent manner.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 TO WHICH
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND DATE OF REPORT (I.E., FROM 15" APRIL, 2024 UPTO 30™
APRIL, 2024), IF ANY:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company which
have occurred between the end of the Financial Year 2023-24 to which the Financial Statement relates
and the date of the Report (i.e., from April 1, 2024 upto April 30, 2024).

DIVIDEND:

In order to conserve the financials resources of your Company, no dividend has been recommended by
the Board of Directors for the Financial Year 2023-24.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE:
Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to General Reserve.
SHARE CAPITAL:

Your Company’s Equity Share Capital position as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Authorized Share Capital Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up
Share Capital
No. of Face Amount (Rs.) No. of Face Amount (Rs.)
Shares Value Shares Value
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Equity 60,000 100 60,00,000 60,000 100 60,00,000
Total 60,00,000 Total 60,00,000

During the Financial Year under review, there has been no change in the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed
and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of your Company.

DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013, i.e.,
within the meaning of Section 2(31) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2(1)(c) of the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the Financial Year 2023-24 and as such there are no such
overdue deposits outstanding as on March 31, 2024.

2
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HOLDING COMPANY:

Astec LifeSciences Limited (Holding Company) is, inter alia, engaged in the business of manufacturing of
Agrochemicals. The shareholding of Astec LifeSciences Limited in your Company as on March 31, 2024
was 65.63% [i.e., 39,380 (Thirty-Nine Thousand Three Hundred Eighty) Equity Shares of Face Value of
Rs.100/- (Rupees One Hundred Only) each] of the Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Equity Share Capital of
your Company and there was no change in this position during the Financial Year 2023-24.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary Company and there was no change in this position during
the Financial Year 2023-24.

ASSOCIATE COMPANY OR JOINT VENTURE COMPANY:

Your Company does not have any Associate Company or Joint Venture Company and there was no change
in this position during the Financial Year 2023-24.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):

The Board of Directors of your Company comprised of the following Directors as on March 31, 2024

Sr. Name of the Director Director Identification Number Designation

No. (DIN)

1. Mr. Ashok V. Hiremath 00349345 Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Anurag Roy 07444595 Non-Executive Director
3. Mr. Arijit Mukherjee 07334111 Non-Executive Director
4. Mr. Balram S. Yadav 00294803 Non-Executive Director

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Anurag Roy, Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation at ensuing
31° (Thirty First) Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Appropriate resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Anurag Roy is being moved at the ensuing 31°* (Thirty
First) Annual General Meeting, which the Board of Directors recommend for your approval.

During the Financial Year under review, there was no appointment or cessation of any Key Managerial
Personnel as per the provisions of Section 203 read with the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Meetings of the Board of Directors of your Company are pre-scheduled and intimated to all the
Directors in advance to order to facilitate them to plan their schedule.

There were 4 (Four) Meetings of the Board of Directors held during the Financial Year 2023-24 [i.e., on
28™ April, 2023, 25™ July, 2023, 25" October, 2023 and 24™ January, 2024] in compliance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SS-1 (Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings) issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

The details of attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2023-24 are
as under:

Sr. | Name of the Directors Number of Meetings attended during the F.Y. 2023-24
No.

1. Mr. Ashok V. Hiremath 4 outof4

2. Mr. Anurag Roy 4 outof 4

3. Mr. Arijit Mukherjee 4 outof4

4, Mr. Balram S. Yadav 4 outof4

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to appointment of Independent
Directors are not applicable to your Company. Therefore, the requirement of obtaining the declaration
confirmation from the Independent Directors is not applicable to the Company.

STATEMENT ON OPINION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND
EXPERIENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24:

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to appointment of Independent
Directors are not applicable to your Company. Therefore, the disclosure requirement of opinion of the
Board of Directors with regard to integrity, expertise and experience of Independent Directors, is not
applicable to the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to establishment of Vigil
Mechanism are not applicable to the Company.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT:

Your Company is not in contravention of any of the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
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MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

During the Financial Year under review, Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your Company. Hence, the Company has not
maintained any cost records and has not appointed any Cost Auditor.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014 pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not applicable to your
Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The Extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, is given in Form MGT-9 and is annexed
herewith as ‘Annexure A’, which forms a part of this Directors’ Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), your Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and ability, confirm as under:

a) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, the
applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and such judgments and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and the profit of the Company for the Financial
Year ended as at that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company, for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) thatthe Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared on a going
concern basis;

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and
were operating effectively;

f) that proper systems are in place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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EXPLANATION(S) / COMMENT(S) TO QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS, ADVERSE REMARKS &
DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS, IF ANY:

There are no adverse remarks, qualifications, reservations or disclaimers made by Statutory Auditors in
their Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 and therefore, no explanations are required to be given by the
Board of Directors.

FRAUD REPORTING:

During the Financial Year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to
the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013:

The particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024,
if any, have been disclosed in the Notes attached to and forming part of the Financial Statements of the
Company prepared for the Financial Year 2023-24, as per the provisions of Section 186 and Section
134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-
SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

All Related Party Transactions which were entered into by your Company during the Financial Year 2023-
24 were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially
significant Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key
Managerial Personnel which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

Your Company does not have contracts or arrangements with its Related Parties under Section 188(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, which are not on arm’s length basis. Therefore, the details of such contracts or
arrangements with its Related Parties are not required to be disclosed in Form AOC-2 as prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. Attention of the Shareholders is also drawn
to the disclosure of transactions with Related Parties as set out in Note No. 20 of the Financial Statements.
None of the Directors have any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

The disclosures pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 pertaining to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo are not applicable to your Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT:

Risk management is a process of thorough identification, assessment and prioritization of risks, followed
by co-ordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate / control the probability and/or impact of
unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of opportunities.

The Company has in place a comprehensive risk assessment and minimization procedure, which is
reviewed in order to ensure that risks are mitigated / controlled through means of a properly defined
framework.

The Board judges the fair and reasonable extent of risks that your Company is willing to take and its
decisions shall be based on this reasonable judgment.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS:

No significant material orders were passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the Financial
Year 2023-24 which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

Your Company has in place, internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements, which are
adequate in the opinion of the Board of Directors.

Also, the Company has a proper system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are authorized,
recorded and reported correctly.

During the Financial Year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness
in the design or operation was observed.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Shah & Kathariya, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No.: 115171W) were
appointed as the “Statutory Auditors” of the Company by the Shareholders at the 29 (Twenty Ninth)
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 21° July, 2022 for a term of 5 (Five) years, commenced from
the conclusion of the 29" AGM till the conclusion of the 34" AGM (i.e., to conduct of Statutory Audit of
the Company from the Financial Year 2022-23 upto the Financial Year 2026-27).

Your Company has obtained a written confirmation from M/s. Shah & Kathariya, Chartered Accountants
that they are eligible and are not disqualified in terms of the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules framed thereunder to continue to act as the Statutory Auditors.


mailto:behram.chemicals@godrejastec.com

BEHRAM CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

“GODRE] ONE”, 3RD FLOOR, PIROJSHANAGAR, EASTERN EXPRESS HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI (EAST),
MUMBAI- 400079, MAHARASHTRA, TEL NO: 022-25188010, EMAIL ID: behram.chemicals@godrejastec.com
CIN: U24100MH1993PTC071480

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

There were no employees on the rolls of the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24 and accordingly,
there is no disclosure required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Your Company was in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards on Meetings
of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) (as may be amended from time to time) during the
Financial Year 2023-24.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR:

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no application made and proceeding initiated / pending the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, by any financial and/or operational creditors against your
Company.

As on the date of this Report, there is no application or proceeding pending against your Company under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF:

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has not made any settlement with its bankers from which
it has accepted any term loan.

OTHER DISCLOSURES AS PER THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 RULE 8(5):

1. | Change in Nature of Business, if any None

2. | Details of Directors / Key Managerial | None
Personnel (KMP) who were appointed or
have resigned during the Financial Year
2023-24

3. | Names of Companies which have become | Not Applicable
ceased to be its Subsidiaries, Joint
Ventures or Associate Companies during
the Financial Year 2023-24
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4 | Details of Deposits, covered under (i) Accepted during the Financial Year 2023-24: Nil
Chapter V of Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) (ii) Remained unpaid or unclaimed during the

Financial Year 2023-24: Nil

(iii) Whether there has been any default in
repayment of deposits or payment of interest
thereon during the Financial Year 2023-24 and if
so, number of such cases and total amount
involved:

a. Atthe beginning of the year: Nil
b. Maximum during the year: Nil
c. Atthe end of the year: Nil

(iv) Details of Deposits which are not in compliance
with the requirements of Chapter V of the Act:
None

5 | Details of Significant and Material Orders | No significant and material orders have been passed
passed by the regulators or Courts or | by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
Tribunals impacting the going concern | impact the going concern status and Company’s
status and the Company’s operations in | operations in future.

future

APPRECIATION:

Your Directors express their appreciation to the Government agencies and stakeholders for their
continued support.

For Behram Chemicals Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Anurag Roy Arijit Mukherjee
Director Director

(DIN: 07444595) (DIN: 07334111)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 April, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO BOARD'’S REPORT

FORM NO. MGT -9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) Corporate Identity Number (CIN):

U24100MH1993PTC071480

ii) Registration Date:

6™ April, 1993

iii) Name of the Company:

BEHRAM CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company:

Company having Share Capital

v) Address of the Registered Office and Contact
Details:

“Godrej One”, 3" Floor, Pirojshanagar,
Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli (East),
Mumbai - 400 079, Maharashtra, India

Tel. No.: 022 — 2518 8010/ 20/ 30

E-mail: behram.chemicals@godrejastec.com

vi) Whether listed company (Yes / No):

No

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:

NSDL Database Management Limited

4th Floor, Tower 3, One International Center, Senapati
Bapat Marg, Prabhadevi,

Mumbai — 400 013, Maharashtra, India

CIN: U72400MH2004PLC147094

Tel. No.: +91-22-24994200

E-mail: info_ndml@nsdl.com

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company are stated

as under:
Sr. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to Total Turnover of
No. Main Products / Services Product / Service the Company
1 | Agro Chemicals — Fungicides and 20211 0%
Herbicides

10
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lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. | Name and Address of CIN/GLN Holding / Subsidiary / % of |Applicable

No. the Company Associate shares Section

held*

1 | Astec LifeSciences L99999MH1994PLC Holding Company 65.63% Section
Limited 076236 2(46)
Registered Office:

Godrej One, 3™ Floor,
Pirojshanagar,
Eastern Express
Highway, Vikhroli
(East),

Mumbai - 400 079
Maharashtra, India

2 | Godrej Agrovet L15410MH1991PLC Holding Company Nil Section
Limited 135359 (Holding Company of (No 2(46)
Registered Office: the Company’s Holding direct
Godrej One, 3™ Floor, Company) Share-
Pirojshanagar, holding)

Eastern Express
Highway, Vikhroli
(East),

Mumbai- 400 079
Maharashtra, India

3 | Godrej Industries L24241MH1988PLC Holding Company Nil Section
Limited 097781 (Holding Company of (No 2(46)
Registered Office: the Holding Company’s direct
Godrej One, Holding Company — Share-
Pirojshanagar, Eastern Ultimate Holding holding)

Express Highway,
Vikhroli (East),
Mumbai — 400 079,
Maharashtra, India

Company)

* Percentage of Shareholding is as on March 31, 2024.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(1) CATEGORY-WISE SHAREHOLDING:
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Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of %
Shareholders beginning of the year the year Change
during
the
year
Demat | Physical Total |%of total| Demat |Physical | Total P6 of total
Shares shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
c) State Govt (s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
d) Bodies Corporate 0 | 39,380 39,380 | 65.633 | 39,380 0| 39,380 65.633 Nil
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
f) Any Other: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ol Nil
Directors Relatives
Sub-total (A) (1): 0 | 39,380 39,380 | 65.633 | 39,380 0| 39,380/ 65.633 Nil
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs — Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
b) Other — Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
c) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
d) Banks / FlI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
Sub-total (A) (2): 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
Total Shareholding 0| 39,380 39,380 | 65.633 | 39,380 0| 39,380/ 65.633 Nil
of Promoters
[(A) = (A)(1) + (A)(2)]
B. Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds/UTI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
b) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
c) Central Government 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
d)State Government 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
e) Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
Fund(s)
f) Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
Companies
g) Flls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ol Nil
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ol Nil
(2) Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate
(i) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ol Nil
(i) Overseas 0 | 20,000 20,000 | 33.333 0| 20,000| 20,000 33.333 Nil
b) Individuals
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(i) Individual
Shareholders holding 0 620 620 1.033 400 220 620 1.033 Nil
nominal share capital
upto Rs.1 Lakh
(i) Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 Nil
Shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs.1 Lakh
c) Others (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trust / Clearing
Member / Non
Resident Indian (NRI)
Sub-total (B)(2) 0 | 20,620 20,620 | 34.367 400| 20,220| 20,620| 34.367 0
Total Public 0| 20,620 20,620 | 34.367 400, 20,220, 20,620, 34.367 0
Shareholding
[(B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2)]
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 0 | 60,000 60,000 | 100.00 | 39,780| 20,220| 60,000/ 100.00 Nil
(11) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:
Sr. Name of Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of the %
No. Shareholders of the year Year Change
No. of | % of total % of No. of | % of total % of Shares during
Shares | shares of Shares Shares | shares of pledged/ the
the pledged/ the encumbered year
Company |encumber Company of total
ed of total shares
shares
1 Astec 39,380 65.63 0 39,380 65.63 0 Nil
LifeSciences
Limited, jointly
with its
nominees

(111) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING (PLEASE SPECIFY, IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of total No. of Shares | % of total

Shares shares of the shares of

Company the
Company
1 At the beginning of the year as on 1% 39,380 65.633% 39,380 65.633%
April, 2023
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2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc)

No change during the year

3 At the end of the year as on 31 March,
2024

39,380

65.633%

39,380

65.633%

(IV) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND

HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS)

1. M. C. Chemicals

Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Year during the Year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
the the
Company Company
At the beginning of the year 20,000 33.333 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity, etc.,)
At the End of the Year (or on the date of - - 20,000 33.333
separation, if separated during the year)
2. Rajashree Deshpande
Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative

beginning of the Year

Shareholding
during the Year

No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of
Company the
Company
At the beginning of the year 400 0.667 - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding
during the vyear specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity, etc.,)
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At the End of the Year (or on the date of - - 400 0.667
separation, if separated during the year)
3. Kamala Sippy
Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative
beginning of the Year Shareholding
during the Year
No. of shares % of total No. of % of total
shares of the shares shares of
Company the
Company
At the beginning of the year 105 0.175 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity,
etc.,)
At the End of the Year (or on the date of - - 105 0.175
separation, if separated during the year)

Surendra Verma

Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Year during the Year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of the
the Company
Company
At the beginning of the year 105 0.175 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity, etc.,)
At the End of the Year (or on the date of - - 105 0.175
separation, if separated during the year)
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5. J.J. Mistry

Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Year during the Year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
the the
Company Company
At the beginning of the year 5 0.008 - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity, etc.,)

At the End of the Year (or on the date of - - 5 0.008
separation, if separated during the year)

6. Villo Mistry
Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Year during the Year

No. of | % of total shares | No.of | % of total shares
shares | of the Company | shares | of the Company
At the beginning of the year 5 0.008 - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity, etc.,)

At the End of the Year (or on the date of - - 5 0.008
separation, if separated during the year)

(V) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

1) Mr. Ashok V. Hiremath (Director):

Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of shares | % of total
shares shares of shares of
the the
Company Company
At the beginning of the year 1 0.002 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
during the year specifying the reasons for

16
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bonus / sweat equity etc.,)

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /

At the End of the Year

- - 1 0.002

Note: Astec LifeSciences Limited continues to hold this 1 (One) Equity Share jointly with Mr. Ashok V. Hiremath.

Increase: Nil
Decrease: Nil

2) Mr. Arijit Mukherjee (Director):

Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
Company Company
At the beginning of the year 1 0.002 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc.,)
At the End of the Year - - 1 0.002

Note: Astec LifeSciences Limited continues to hold this 1 (One) Equity Share jointly with Mr. Arijit Mukherjee.

Increase: Nil
Decrease: Nil

Note: Mr. Balram S. Yadav and Mr. Anurag Roy, Directors of the Company did not hold any Equity Shares of the

Company as on March 31, 2024.

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
Deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the Financial Year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the
Financial Year

¢ Addition

¢ Reduction

Net Change

Nil
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Indebtedness at the end of the Financial
Year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: Not Applicable

Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount (in Rs.)
No.
Gross Salary
1 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of Perquisites under Section 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of Salary under Section 17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Options
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- Asa % of Profit
- Others, specify
5 Others, if any

TOTAL (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to Other Directors: Nil

1) Independent Directors

1)} Non-Executive Directors

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director / Manager / Whole
Time Director — Nil

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Description | Penalty/Punishment/ | RD/NCLT/Court | Made, if
Companies Compounding fees any (give
Act imposed details)
A. Company
Penalty None
Punishment
Compounding

B. Director
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Penalty None

Punishment

Compounding

C. Other Officer in Default

Penalty None
Punishment
Compounding

For Behram Chemicals Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Anurag Roy Arijit Mukherjee
Director Director

(DIN: 07444595) (DIN: 07334111)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30*" April, 2024
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SHAH & KATHARIYA

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

Behram Chemicals Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Behram Chemicals Private Limited (“the Company™).
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows

for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and profit
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statement or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Head Office: T6/601, Rustomjee Ozone, New link road, Goregaon (West) Mumbai — 400104.
Branch Office: 501, Antariksh Thakur House, Makwana Lane, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059
Phone - 9987249694 » Email: office@shahkathariya.com « Web: www.shahkathariya.com




Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operafing effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions ol users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 1o
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. ’

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable.
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A™ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been Kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢)  The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash fTows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the dircctors as on 31
March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms ol
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating ctfectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B™




2)

h)

iii.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section
197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given o us. the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section
197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024
on its financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 22 10 the financidl
statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

(a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 1o or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behall of the Company or
provide any guarantee, security or the like 1o or on behall of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies).
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™). with the understanding. whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly. lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee.
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations as provided under (a) and (b) above. contain any
material misstatement.




v. Based on our examination, which included test checks. the company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (cdit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Shah & Kathariya
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 115171W

P M Kathariya
Partner
Membership No.: 031315
UDIN: 24031315BKAIMMS8173
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2024




With reference to Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors™ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report the following:

O]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(a)

The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or
right of use assets or investment property and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

As explained to us, the Company does not have any property, plant and equipment
and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)A of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not own any immovable property. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company has not revalued any of its property. plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

The Company does not have inventory. Accordingly. the provisions of clauses 3(ii)(a)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of tive crore
rupees by banks or financial institutions on the basis ol security of current assets
during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loan. secured or unsecured (o companies. firms.
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly. the provisions ol clauses
3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d). 3(iii)e) and 3@ of the Order are 1ot
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and
186 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is nol
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Act and the rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

[n our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us. the
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act is not applicable 1o the
Company under Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules. 2014

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. amounts deducted’ acerued in the books
of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues of Provident fund. Employees™ state
insurance, Profession tax. Duty of custom, Duty of cxcise, Cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate  authorities.
According to the information and explanations given 10 us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, amounts deducted accrued in the books of
account in respect of Income-tax and Goods and services tax have been regularty
deposited with the appropriate authorities,




According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Profession tax,
Income-tax, Goods and services tax, Duty of custom, Duty of excise. Cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period ol more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(vii)  (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Goods
and services tax, Duty of customs and Duty of excise as at 31 March 2024, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
According to the information and explanation given to us. the following dues of
Income-tax, Sales-tax and Value added tax have not been deposited by the Company

on account of disputes: .

Forum where the | Period to which |

Nature of | . ) I ‘

Nature of Statute i Dispute is | the Amount Amount |
Pending | Relates 1 |

The Income Tax Act, 1961 | Tax ITO l AY 2007-08 311705 |
The Income Tax Act, 1961 | Tax ITO [ AY2012-13 17410 |

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us. no transactions were

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of
accounts.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing to the banks. The
Company did not have any outstanding loans and borrowings to government. financial
institution and dues to debenture holders during the year.

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not raised any moneys
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly. paragraph 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully. partially or
optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly. reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) During the course of our examination of the books and records ol the Company.
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us. we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year. nor have we been informed
of any such case by the management.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the
Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 arc not applicable to it.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.

According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company is not
required to have an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system. Accordingly. reporting under
clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly.
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us. the
Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately
preceding financial year,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the vear. Accordingly .
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

- financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities. other information accompanyving the standalone
financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will

get discharged by the company as and when they fall duc.




(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company does not
fulfill the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under
clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Shah & Kathariya
Chartered Accountants

FRN No. 115171W
/‘/—
I

| T 1Y (7

P M Kathariya FRNASATIW ) &
Partner o
Membership No.: 031315 7, s Y

UDIN: 24031315BKAIMMS8173
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Behram
Chemicals Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference 1o
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies. the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafier referred to as “the Act™).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing. prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent
applicable, to an audit of internal financial controls both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control with reference to financial statements and their operating eftectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject 1o
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For Shah & Kathariya
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 115171W

|y

P M Kathariya

Partner

Membership No.: 031315
UDIN: 24031315BKAIMM8173
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2024




Behram Chemicals Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31,2024
Rs. in Lakh
March31,  March 31,
i 2024 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment Property 2 26.19 27.07
Financial Assets
Deposit 3 - 10.12
Total non current assets 26.19 37.19
Current assets
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 4 5.29 9.21
Cash and cash equivalents 5 0.94 1.56
Bank Balance other than cash & cash equivalents 6 102.66 76.19
Income tax assets (net) 7 0.82 0.62
Other current assets 8 0.92 1.38
Total current assets 110.63 88.96
Total assets 136.82 126.15
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 60.00 60.00
Other equity 10 73.11 61.92
Total equity 133.11 . 121.92
Linbilties
Non current lisbilities
Deferred tax liabilities(net) 11 3.59 3.46
Total non-current Habflities 3.59 3.46
Cuyrent ligbflities
Other current liabilities 12 0.12 0.77
Total current liabilities 0.12 0.77
Total liabilities 371 4.23
Total equity and liabilitles 136.82 126.15
As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Shah & Kathariya Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Chartered Accountants e (CIN: U24100MH1993PTC071480)
FRN No. 115171W "‘\ .
SOy -
‘\/w s by
P M Kntlmrlyn Anurag Roy Arifit Mukherjee
Director Director
Membershnp No.: 031315 DIN: 07444595 DIN: 07334111

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2024
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Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in Lakh
» - Note March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Income
Other income 13 16.82 13.19
Total income 16.82 13.19
Expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense 14 0.88 0.88
Other expenses 15 0.96 1.09
Total expenses i 1.84 1.97
Profit before tax 14,98 11.22
Income tax expense:
- Current tax 16 3.66 2.67
- Deferred tax 11 0.11 0.15
- Tax for earlier years 16 5 R
Total tax expense 3.77 2.82
Profit/(Loss) for the year 11.21 8.40
Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassifed to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Income tax related to the above item
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 11.21 8.40
Earnings per equity share for profit
attributable to equity shareholders of
Behram Chemicals Pvt Ltd
Basic (in Rs,) 18.69 14.00
Diluted (in Rs.) 18.69 14.00
As per our report attached Formdonbehalroftlel!oardofl)lreetou
For Shah & Kathariya Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Chartered Accountants (CIN: U24100MH1993PTC07 1480)

FRN No. 115171W

:
w/}m R
An

PM Kathartya Arljit Mukherjee
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 031315 r— DIN: 07444595 DIN: 07334111 : N\

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2024



Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the Year ended March 31,2024

Rs. in Lakh
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 14.98 11.22
Adjnlunenummoncilepmﬁtbeforemtonctcuhuledin
operating activities
Depreciation for the year 0.88 0.88
Interest Income 16.02) 2.39)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 9.84 9.71
Change in operating assets and lisbilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 4 392 36.46
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets . 8 10.13 0.57
Increasce/(decrease) in other current liabilities 12 0.29 033
Increase / (Decrease) Other current / Non-current liabilities (0.50) -
Cash generated from operations 23.68 47.07
Income Tax paid ( Net of refunds) 7 13.86) 12.94)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities 19.82 44.13
Cash flow from investing activities
Fixed deposits in bank redeemed/(deposited) (26.46) (45.80)
Interest Received 6.02 2.39
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 120.44) (4341)
Cash flow from financing activities -
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities - -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (0.62) 0.72
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vcar 1.56 0.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.94 1.56

Note 1 ;

Thzabovemhﬂowmmmemh:sbeenpmpmdunderthcindimtmthoduaetmninlndimAccounﬁngsmdnrd7Cthlow
Statement notified w/s 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") read with Rule 4 of the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015,
as amended and the relevant provisions of the Act.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Shah & Kathariya Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Chartered Accountants (CIN: U24100MH1993PTC071480)

FRN No. 115171W

P M Kathartya Anurag Roy ~ Arijit Mukherjee
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 031315 DIN: 07444595 DIN: 07334111

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2024



Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Statement of changes In equity for the Year ended March 31,2024

A. Equity share capital ) Rs. in Lakh

Notes March 31. 2024 March 31 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 9 60.00 60.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year = =
Balance as at the end of the year 60.00 60.00
B. Other equity

Retained.
Notes fns Total Equity

Balance as at April 1, 2022 10 53.52 53.52
Profit/(loss) for the year 8.40 8.40
Other comprehensive income for the year . - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 8.40 8.40
Transactions with owners In their capacity as owners: - -
Dividends paid (including dividend distribution tax) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 61.91 61.91
Balance as at April 1, 2023 61.91 61.91
Profit/(loss) for the year 1121 11.21
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Total comprehensive income for the year 11.21 11.21
Trlnucﬂouwitlowncuhdldrupodtyuownm: -
Dividends paid (including dividend distribution tax) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 73.12 73.12
TheNotes 1 to 22 form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Shah & Kathariya Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Chartered Accountants (CIN: U24100MH1993PTC071480)
FRN No. 115171W )
P M Kathariya Anu Aij it Mukberjee
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 031315

DIN: 07444595 ‘ DIN: 07334111

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2024




Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements

Note 1 : Significant sccounting policies

A. General Information
semcmuPﬁmunﬁmdcmcm')u;mmmw.wmummmmmmekmmofmmmm
msimodoﬁeclinmdltGodm'Om.SrdFloor,Pﬁoij ,EumEmunH&hm,V&mﬁﬁmMm—WWQ,mCmmwu
mcorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on April 6, 1993,

Significant accounting policies
B. Basls of preparation

(1) Statement of compHiance with Ind A8

mmmmnwmsmmmu)ummcmuan&mmmgsmmm, 2015, ny amended and notified under
lecﬁonl!ScfﬂrCWMZOIZ.{ﬂe'Acﬂmdoﬁﬂmlﬂmtmvﬁmsofmm

(i) Historical cost convention

Thcﬁnmcinlummuhxvebmptqmadon uhmicdmh;is,mﬁrlhchnowinx:
-cwtuinﬁnmchlmmdﬁahiﬁﬁw(ﬁnlndfngd&imﬁveinw)ﬂmismmcdltfah-n!ne(m-Ammﬁngpalicymdingﬁnmchk
instrments);

- ddmbmﬁtm—phnumwmuﬁhmh:mmwadcﬁmbuﬁtobﬁmmd

- share-based payments - measured at fair value

(1if) Functions) and presentation cmrrency
Iterns inchded in the Mw«mwmwmmwdmmmmwmwmmm
cpexm(‘theﬁmcﬁonslcmy‘)mhﬂianR\mec{NR)htbeﬂmﬁondmdmummﬁmmmcyof&cmpmy‘

C. Key estimates and assumptions

Emmmmumpﬁmmmdmmmmbuis.kwiﬁmﬁmmﬁnguﬁmmwmognimdmpecﬁveb«.
Judaemm:,uﬁmmmdmunpﬁmmrequimdinwﬁcﬂuﬁm

() Recognition snd measurement of defined benefit obligations
Tbeobligaﬁonm'inmgﬁmndeﬁnodbeneﬁtplmhmwmmwumuum.mwmmﬁmmmﬁmm
tmm:khuhqueﬂnﬁm,wmﬁﬂummdﬁkupmcy.mdimmmismmbywmmnietyinki&attheendoﬂhereput&xg

(1) Recognition and messurement of other provisions
Thzmosxiﬁonmdmmmmofaﬁummiﬁmmbuedmhmmof&emhbﬂﬂyofmomﬂmofm and on past experience
mmmnmmmmmmmﬁmnammmm.mmmmmwmm

(v} Discounting of long-4erm financial assets / Uabliities
Aliﬁnnucin!umlﬁsbﬂhiesmreq\ﬁredmbcmmmduﬁmmminiﬁﬂmog:ﬁﬁmhmofﬁnmdﬂﬁxbiﬁﬁwmwhichmmqukedm
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Beliram Chemleals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Flnsuclal Statements

(¥} Falr value of financig! Instruments
Derivutivenmmriednfnirvnhm‘l)edvaﬁvesimh:duﬂxdgncmmcyﬁ:rwudm.hkuhmofﬁmigncmcyfomndcommm
Wmﬁgﬂwﬁrvﬂmmmﬁdﬁbymmﬁvchmm.

(vl) Determining whether an srTRngement containg a lease

Ind AS !lﬁrequimieueemdﬁuxmimmmwmuhmmnwepaiﬁofabuwmm“vopﬁmwmmmmﬂzm.
ifﬁaenaeofmhopﬁmbmﬁbmmmmmmm&wmmmlmwmmmwm
whcﬁaithmm;b&wuhﬁnmopﬁmswmmdwmmﬁmﬁcmmwwumInwahmmhsetmn,mcﬁmxpeomidm
facmumhumydwmwmmmmmmmmmmmsmMMMhmmmWof
memder!yingumhkhgﬁmmmﬁehcaﬁmofthemﬂalyhgm:tmdﬁww&ihbﬂkynfmﬂabbmmnﬁm.Tbeleuemminﬁmmperiodsis
memmzhuemmﬂemthumwmic i Afmmﬂumgcmmmdﬁm“mammmthe&um
huccnchxdcdthnnochmgammmﬁmdmbuepcdodmhﬁngmﬂwexkﬁnghmemw.

D. Measurement of falr vahies

TheCompany'lawomﬁngpolidumddiwbmnquhcﬁwmwmof&kvﬂmﬁr.bmhﬁmmhlmdm-ﬁmdﬂmlndlhbilitiu.'!‘bc
thmmbﬁmdmo}ﬁmmwﬁhwmﬁsmwmof&irm.‘I‘hemmantngulnbuvx’msligniﬁm
mbcarvnbhinpmmdvahuﬁonadjum.Ifmmmmm»mqmwmmglaﬁmhmmmmw.m
mmmwmm@mﬁmmmmwmmmmwmmmmchumsﬁmmmmqmofmw,
bmhdﬁxgmclevclmmeﬁixwhmhiamhymwlﬁchlnchwhaﬁmwbechuiﬁed,

Wmmm&km“dqumnwwmy,owmomwm»ﬁrupom'bb.Fuirvduum

Diﬁmmnomohmnmedmlywhmmdmmmdwﬂwmismb&hcd, itismbcbhtha.tﬁwwommicbmﬂu asgociated with the
dividend will flow to the Compmy.mdlhclmonmofdividmdcnnbemmedmlhhb.
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mewdﬁumw”mlﬁmmwmhgm“mmmmﬁwmdm&tmdm.wﬁhinﬁnmem.AB
nthxﬁureignw:chmgepﬁumdbuamuummdinthammunofpmﬁtmdbuonanabashwi&inuumExchmgckm&l-‘mwntd
ExshangcCon&wu.Nmmemyhm&mmmnmdufﬁ:vﬂmhaﬁnigncmmcymmmmmmmnmcdmwhm&e
faﬁwhwwndcurmmTmsktimdifmmmumndﬁabﬂiﬂmmhdu&kvﬂmmmpmudnmofﬂnﬁﬁvnhnpﬁnoﬂw.

(3) Employment Benefits

Shm—mmmphyecbmnﬁmmexpenwduﬂzrehmdmineismvided.A&bﬂiﬁrismnhedSmtbnmmexpecmdmbepaidiﬂheCom
lmnmhplmmmwﬁwobﬁxnﬁmmp&yﬂﬁammulmhafputmﬁoepmﬁdedbyﬂmanplo;umdthcohﬁpﬁmmbeuﬁmmd
relisbly. The Company has & scheme of Performance Linked Variable Remumeration (PLVR) which rewards its employees based on either Beonomic
Vdquddad(EVA)uerﬁtbeﬁomtax(FBT).mPLVRmmtilrchmdwmm!im;zmmmudeineiihuEVAorPBTovertthmimnyw
when compared with expected improvements,

Ity within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
rchtedaervice.MmmwummmﬁwmmmhmmwdmmﬁwwmwM

mmeendw@@mmmmmmmm:mmmwummmm&mmnmmwmm
actuarial sssumptions are recoenised in nrofit or loss,

Thcohliuﬁouneptumhdummﬁnbﬁﬁah&%imif&ee&vbamhummm&mmmmmntﬂmhum
wemmmumﬁumwofwmmmmuummm.

i p N
The Company operutes the following post-employment schemes:
(8) defined benefit plens such es gratuity, and

(b} defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratulty obligations

m&mmgm-mbmmmmmmwuﬁmmﬁzmz

Gratulty :
mmmpqy’snetobﬁmﬁmhmdmmmkmwmmawﬁmmmnmphmhwmh
mecmmmdaiorpciods,disoamﬁmﬁnmmmddmﬁngﬂw&&vﬂwofmypknm.

meakumimxmmobwhmmwammmmmmmmmmmm@
msulnmnwm&lmfm&c&mmy‘ﬂtmomﬁudmhHmhedwﬂnmvaheofwommicbmﬁnmeﬂnhh:inmﬁnmofmﬁm
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Ranmmemmgm‘nsmdbuumiﬁngﬁmapuimxndjummdcbminmuialummpﬁmuemeogniudinthcpa:iodinwhichthoy
ocm,directbrinothnmompmhemveinm.Thaymindxﬂedhmﬂinndemhgshﬂwmmzofchnguheqmymdinmhhmum

Defined contribution plans
Tmepmymw&MﬁMMhﬁmwMﬁc&MmMMumehﬁomTthomhnmﬁnﬂnpuymmt
obligxﬁmuomthceonm'buﬁomhnvebompaid.mmﬁhﬁmmwcmmdﬁrumcmhﬁmmm&smmnewm
a8 esmployoe benefit expense when they are dus,

{iv) Share-based pavments
smmwmmmmmmmmmmu&smmmmsmomm.

Employse options:.
The&irvd\mcfopﬁousgxanﬁdmd&tbcAmuﬁSchnmLknﬁszmpbyeeSmckOpﬁmleismomindumemploywbencﬁuexpcnscwi!h
tmspmdinghmmmincqniw.Thehmlmnummbecxpmudisdmhedbym&:mto&cﬁhmoﬂhcopﬁmsm

-inchdiugmymnkztpaﬁnmmmdiﬁm(c.a..rhomﬁty‘uhuepﬁw)
-nghdﬁ:gthnhnputofmymcmdmmnkupaﬁxmmevuﬁngmdidm(c.g.mﬁmbﬂity,mmmmdmﬁningmmpbyee
of the entity over a specified time period), and
-MMngﬁnimmofnnymn-mtinsconditiom(c.g.mmmhrmpbymmmwholﬁngsmhamtﬁcwhdcfﬁm).
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Thcto&lmtpmseisrecomindovuthcvwﬁn;peﬁod.whichhﬂnp«iodwawhichaﬂofﬂwwiﬁedv&&ngoonﬂiﬁmsmwbeuﬁsﬁuimm
md.ofeuchpe:‘md,theentityrm’usiucsdmmofﬂmmb«ofopﬁmﬁnmapemdmmhndan&:m—mmmmm
conditions. Itmngnisuﬂ»impnctofﬂxexwixienmoﬁgiulesﬂmam.ifm,hmﬁtorm,wiﬁ:aommpmﬂi\mmwethy.

(v) Bonus plans

’I‘heCnmpmymomisunliabiﬁtymdmwmm.mmmmmmumbuwmmyomwedmwmmuehn
prst practice that has created a constructive obligation,

-

Anmmdbuaﬁmmrmgnmdumexpmuhmmﬁnwhichmwmimmd
(4) Income tax

ncmmmmmueditﬁxmep«iodiamcmmhmdnammwﬁod'umxablchcomzbmdmmappﬁuhhhmuxmﬂxmh
jmmwwwmmﬂmmmmmmwmwmmmdemlma.

mwmmmumm&qhsisoftbemhmmsudusuhmﬂﬁmhrmcmdntheuﬂof&empmﬁngmiodhm.
Mmts«nmtpcxiodim]xywatumpoaiu'nnsmmmmwﬁhmpmmdwmbwﬁchwpﬁmmmuhﬁmhmhimmm.
nmmmwmmmmemwmmmmumﬁmMmmm.
Dmm:mhmmdhmmmmeﬁnbﬂhymimwdiﬁkmmmmcmbamofmand!iabﬂitiumd
Mmmﬂ,mmwh&mmmm(mhws)mmmmwmmﬁﬂbmbyﬁcmdoﬂhe
WWmewmwmum&MTndmmhmemedmmwlinbiii:yiawulad.

Deﬁmudﬁxmmmmcognindﬁuﬂdedwﬁbkmydif&rmmmdmmm losses only if it is probeble that future tuxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporsry differences and losses

DefamdtuxuseuaudlinbilitiumuﬁuzwhenﬁneinnleuﬁymﬁmubbﬁghtmoﬁwtmmmmmdEnbﬂiﬁesméwhmmdeﬁmedux
bdmmmhhemﬂmmhmaﬁmlnﬁority.cmhxmmdmﬁlbiﬁﬁmmoﬁ«whmﬂnmﬁ:yhuahpﬂyeaﬁmeabhﬁwwoﬁsawd
mma&ammmamw.mmmmmmmmmwwmmmm

Cmmcmddefmedmxhmmﬁdhmﬁtmb&,wwﬂnn&nﬁﬁh%bi&mmﬁminaﬂwrcompmhem‘veimmneordizecﬂy
inaqm‘ty.hﬂﬁammmhmm&mmwmmm&yhemﬁmmﬁw&

(5) Inventories

Raw materialy and stores, work In progress, traded and finished goods

Rxwmminlsmdmm,workinptogxux.mdadmdﬁninbcdgoodsm:mednﬁchwuofcoamdmmﬁublevﬂnc.cmﬁmwmw«hhmd
hndedgoodseumgisamofmum‘Cmemk@mmmmmdﬁmm,wmmdmw
WMWM&&W«W.MWWWm&WMuMWM. Cost of inventories also
mhdemohrmmummwmmnhvmiumm“mhwﬁmmdwﬁm.mmmmcmmmﬂmeqnityofmy
gainlorlc:monquulifyingcukMmmmwmﬁmmm«cmmm.CmmmmhﬁWﬁm
ofixmmmyon&emﬁweidnednvmmw.Cmﬂpmmmmnmmmmﬁngmmmditcmm.Netxesh’nble
vn}uaismeesdmmduningptieeintbemﬁmycmcfbmhmlusmwmmofcmkﬁmmdﬂwmwdmwmmhm
me. .

(6) Property, plant and equipment

R . {
MMM,MMQWWWnMMMWmmWWWMEW.

T‘hewstofminuncfp:mmphmmdewimmcom'iw:

a) mmm,mmﬁngmwanAm-mﬁmmmmmmmmmmm. '

b) mmdimcﬁylnn'hmhlcmbﬁndngmemmﬁehcaﬁmmdmdiﬁmmnyfwkmbcmbbofomﬁngm&emmw
by management,

c} ﬂ:zhidﬂesﬁmmaﬂﬁsmofdhmmﬁngmdmvmmcimnmdmmmzsimcnwhinhitishmd,tbeobﬁpﬁmhwlﬁchmm&ty
x‘xmmdihcrwhmﬁzeitemmmmmunwofhmw&mmnmmwhmmmmwm
inventories during that period.
hmcmdapmwmhmdmﬁnheidm&op&aﬁm.mmwywbﬁngmeMmﬂmbuﬁonmdcmdiﬁonmmyﬁritwbemblaof
Mghmemmwbymammmmmﬁesmmoﬂmﬁtmm.
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IfligniﬁcampamofmHmofmm.plmwdoquipmmhnwdiﬁumuszfulﬁmthentheymmmwdnddqmcimdfmumwimma
(mq_inrwmpunmu)ofmputy,plmtmdaquimem.
Anygtinmloesondixpoulofmiﬁunofmm.plnnmdeqsdpmhrwommmsmmof%ﬁtmdm

SuboequemWhmmifkhmwmmmmmmmwﬁwwmwmﬂowmﬂchmpmy.

quecx’ntimiacalmhwdummeluﬁm-ﬁnemcthodmauocmthcirmt.mufﬂniruiduuvaluu,omthdruﬁmmdmeﬁﬂlim specified in
schedule II to the Companics Act, 2013 except for the following: : ’
(&) Plant and Machinery:

Buﬁmﬁccmﬁﬁmdﬂwpm,mmmmhmmdmmﬁmnmmlminmmlummmzmdmamme
Commhuconsidueduwﬁﬂliﬁof?hnmdehinzyuZﬁm.

{b) Computer Hardware:
De;ncimdamiuenimmeduuﬁﬂlifeoﬂm‘

(c) Right of use asset;

(d)[mscholdimpmvunmmdeqnipmum:
Ammﬁndmﬁc?ﬁmmyhusepmiodmiémwhichevuklm

Assets costing less then Rs, 5,000mﬁmydepwimdintbnywofmchnemquisi&on.Dmcinﬁonmcﬁnds.uwﬁﬂﬁmmdmi@duhum
micwedatunhuporﬁngdmmduﬁumdifmm.

Anm’smmmkwmmm&mammhmﬁdnmmcmyingamaumicmthmiuu&mﬂedmomhle
amount

GﬁmmdlwmmdkmsﬂsmdemﬁmbymmpnhgmwdswimwmmThewmimludadhmﬁtmbnswi&inoﬁcr
gains/(losses).

(T)Inveiuuentmpcrﬂu
Prcpa‘tythni;hcldﬁarlmg~wrmrmlyieldaorﬁotcapiulmemmmnhm;wmﬁbydnCmy.hcmﬁﬁedninvum
pmpm;*.WmhwmwnmmmmmmmnﬁdwhﬂemﬁubkmmmSublequuxt
E&pmditmis:apiuliledmtkem’scmybgmumtonbwhmkhmhbhmﬁummmbmﬁummmmeapeﬁmnwmm
mtheCemmmdvhemef&chamcanbewumdmﬁlMy.AumhumptinmdmdmmmcmtsmapmmdwhmmmWhmmofm
Wmhmmmmdm@wmumm

lﬂwlnwﬂﬁumdqxwhmdmingﬂw straight-line method over their estimated useful Kves, Investment propestics generally have a usefol life of
25-40 yearg,

(8) Intangible sseets

() Computer software

Recognition and messurement
hwansibhmeanemogmlzedwhmitispohnbhmmcﬁm“ecommicbmﬁuﬁnmdtﬁmhbmmumwinﬂowwﬂw%mpmymdﬁe
cost of the asset can be measured reliably,

Inmgxbhnmviz.Cowgnmwﬁwmmdpmeeﬁmnﬁm,whichqunkedbyﬂwCompmymdhmeﬁnMnseﬁdlimmmlmduoon

ThceossofinmﬁblomnlstApxﬂZDlS,ﬂxeCtmpmy‘ldmofmiﬁmmIndAS, wes determined with reference to its carrying valus at that
dats.

Amortisation ‘
Amm‘uﬁmi-memhwﬁmhmmmwmmmmmmﬁmmmMmm
usefal lives, and is genemlly recognised in profit or logs.

mwkmmmmﬁndmmmmmﬁmngimm:

Computer software i Gyears

~Product Registration : S years
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(i) Research and development
Rcvemnexpmdﬂtmonmwch&dﬂehmischﬂgedmtboSumnﬂnomeﬁtdemcf&em:inwhinhitiuincmad.
Cap'mlaxpenditweincmedémﬁgmewbdmmmh&dmbmmkmmmdﬁrumw&ﬁmmmmy,m&eqﬁm

(%) Borrowing couts
Gemralnndtpeciﬁcbmowingoosﬁthumdimcﬂymn’hmb!emmowquidﬁm,cmmﬁnnmmdncﬁmofuqudiﬁringnsutmupmﬁud
m&whdd&mﬁuhmmmmhwmdmmmﬁxiumew.mmmmmwma
mb«unﬁaimdofﬁmewmmdvfwmmwmor i

mwmmmumm&emmwmmmm ”

(10} Segment reporting

meCmmydﬁmmmhdgingmminmmoffmdgnwmcydsk mwthmkuudeommodnymmkucnhﬂowhedgﬁ
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| Pioansiil
Clasgification
mmycwﬁumwmmmmnowhgmmmdu:

- Wh«euuummmuedn&iruhn,mmdlommdﬁmmugxﬁnden&dyinm Shmnmmﬂ‘mﬁtmd[nss(i,c. fair value through profit
crlom).ot:wogxﬁudinOthaCom;mhemivehnm(ic.ﬁirvﬂmﬂnwgh other comprehensive income),

- Aﬁnminlmﬁmmemﬂwfollowinglwomditbmhmodnmmﬁzedeoﬂ(mofmywﬁwdownﬁnmixmmﬂmhsawzmh
Wn%v&&ﬁm&hmﬁtmhumﬂwmﬁkmm N

BuuinmmodelmTheohjecn‘veoﬂbcCompmy'sbnmmodclisﬁohokdﬂmﬁnmialmwooﬁmhmﬁumﬂcuhﬂows(mbﬂmwuﬂ
minmmmmimmmdmamitymrmﬁuiu&kmchmgu).

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual ofthcﬁnmhlmgiveduonspmiﬁeddmmmhﬂwnhnmm?:lypaynmﬁsofpﬁmipal
mdmmmmnmncmdmommdmg .

Initial recognition and measurement
Athﬁslmwyﬁﬁm,&cmmywumnﬁnmh{ma&hmm,inﬂ:eascofnﬁnmciﬂmmmdednfaﬁvahwtbrwghthe
SmmdhﬁtwmmMmMMmmuhkmmeWﬁmdenm

Fouity i

-Equityizmmmmmchﬂndwimbm:?mLcmmmmmtmdn&irmwkhaﬂshsngurwomﬁmdinﬂwsmemdl’mﬁtmdlms.

Derecognition
Aﬁ!mcia%m(or,whmuppﬁable.tmﬁaﬁnwﬂumumofquofdmﬁxwm)ﬁmmm (ie. removed
from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, ﬂmepmmpﬁumpmdmm(ECL)moddﬁammmmmdmmﬁmoﬁmpdmbumm
ﬁollowingﬁnmiu]ummdmditﬁdwxpmm:

t)Finmziulaumthatmdeb{ins&nmmm.mﬂmmmwsdnnmo«ﬁwdwﬂe.g., loans, deposits, and benk balance,
b)mmh-mmmcfm&ﬁsdmhdmmmqmﬂnCmmmmmincmdinisk.knhu.itneoznises

ThgCompawchm‘ﬂmmmwmwm«mmwummwwhwmnwmwm
Staternent of Profit and Loss. Suchliabiﬁﬁes.includimdu’ivaﬁvesMmﬁubi}iﬁu.mhmbmwvmmmnﬁrvdue.
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Initial recognition and messurement
Financial liabilitiummehm&eCmmlmmmmﬂmﬁmo!mWWﬁmﬁﬁuncW

mhmgcmmndiﬁaﬁmhumduﬂndumpﬁﬁmofmemﬁabﬂkymdﬂwmgﬁﬁmcnwh’al:imy.’I’hediﬁuminﬁnmpoc&w
carrving emounts is recognized in the statemnent of profit and loss.
Offsetting of financisl nstruments

{(15) Leases
Aconuactis,orcmmina,almcifﬂwoomm:tcmvcysthcrightmaonu-o!ﬂsomeofnnidmﬁﬁedmetfm:pcﬁodofﬁmemmhmgefm
iderati
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conmot.Amvmia,oremmim.ahaeifﬁ:mwwnwynﬂwdghtwcmmlthcmofmidmﬁﬁeduaetfoupﬂiodofﬁmcinexehnngeﬁm'
eonsidum%mmwhe&aammmmmerightmmﬂclﬁwmofmidmﬁﬁedmd,&emmmwhﬂhm (1) the contract
invol‘vesﬂ:cmofmﬂenﬁﬁcdulet(z)themm ! Aﬂoftha&mmﬁnbmmﬁuﬁummofﬂ:ummmmhdwpﬁodof&emm
{3Y the eroun has the right to direct the use of the asset,

Aﬂhcdatxot'commummofﬂwleuu.tthprmcog,nimaﬁgbt-of—mw(‘nov')mdlcmmspmdinglunﬁnbmtyﬁxuﬁm
tmzmcminwlﬁchililahuee.a:ceptforleuuwiﬂutemoﬁwe}vemomhnmlu;(m-umleuu)lndlowvahmleum.FmMe:hmum
and low vahwlum.ﬂwﬂmupmogxﬁmﬂmhmptymmumopal&mexpmsecnlmight-ﬁncbuhmﬁwmmofmcluse.

cmmwmmmmmam«mwmmmm&mmm.RoUmmdmmbaim
hcbdumueopﬁouwhmhhmmycmm&cywmbcmiwd.

mﬁghx-of-uneummhiﬁdtymgniudnmwbkhmmimﬁehiﬁdmmnof&chulhbﬂﬁyadjmmdﬁarm%mmmmﬁeuw
priorbtheoommnmdaﬁccfﬂmmmmhﬁﬂﬁmmmmmmwm.wmwmwnmm:

Theleueliabiﬁq«iaMW&WM&MMWMNMMW.MMWWWMM
hwrmmimpliciththehuem,ﬂmm&mﬂnﬁhmmmmmmmmmmﬁﬁmkkdmm.m
liabﬂiﬁeomremelmtadwid:lcmupmdingnﬁmmmﬂwmhwdﬁgmm‘wmifﬂmmchm‘uﬁummmifwhﬁhaitwﬂlmile
&1 extension or a termination option,

lmlinbiﬁtydeOUaucthavcmwwh&zmswmhnmhMManﬁmmmﬁwm

Groun g3 & Jeasor
lmfnrwhichttemupis'ﬂmorisc]miﬁeduaﬁnmncotopmﬁngbue.Whenevetth:wmsoftbcwmﬁennhmzsﬁmyantheﬁskzmd
mvndsofowmhipwtbelenec.theconminehuiﬁedu:ﬁnmoelme.ﬂo&uluaumchﬁﬁcduopaaﬁnghm.

WhenﬁmOrwpisminmmedimhsu,itncwumxfwh:intueminthehudhuemddwmﬂmuupﬁmly.Thelubhneisc!assiﬁeduuﬁmne
wmﬁuhubymfumm&eﬁgktd—mwm&mﬁmhadm.

Foropuninglwu.mmincmchmccpﬁmdmamﬁgbtﬁnebaﬁ:m&emcﬁhemkvmluse.

(16) Impairment of non-financlal assets )
Gcodwinundhnngﬂ)hmﬂmhaveinﬁ:dwmmHﬁmmwhjwwdwmﬁnﬁmmdmmdmmﬂyﬁnhnpdmormmﬁvqwmlyif
cvenis or changes in circumstances hdicmlbulh:ymimbcinmdmd.

mmummemmhmm&ﬁwmmlﬁn;pdcemdﬁmirvﬂuehm.vmmmkuﬁvednbydiwmmﬁngmemmﬁommﬂmﬁ
presmtvahwbuedmmcmpdamdiwmﬁcwrﬁmmﬂem current market asscssments of&nﬁmcvdmofmmcymd&neriskspeciﬁcmth:
asset,
Wbmthmisindiuﬁon&nmhnpukmmtloumogninedfurmnuet(otheﬂhmamahmdm)inmﬁamﬁngpniodswﬁnhmlmgucﬂm
ormyhnvedmsed,suchmmalofhnpﬁmmlmsi:momindhme Smmofhﬁtmdbu,wtheumthema&nwumiomly
cherged to the Summmofhommm.huuofmhwdm.mhmvmﬂhnmmomﬁnd.

vaiaionismudcﬁ:rdwmmofmﬁﬁd@duhﬁ,bdngmpﬁmebmhmiﬁmdmhngsﬂ&ewnofmmﬁmonnrbeﬁomthe
eﬁdofthemtﬁ:guaiodbutnotdisuﬂwmdnﬂmmdoﬁhcmﬁmm
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{18) Cash and cash equivalents
Cnhmdwhequivﬂnminﬂubuhmmmcuhnbank;mdmhmdmdshnﬁ-ﬂmdcpmﬂxwﬁhmoﬁghnlmﬂnityofﬂmemomhsm
lm.whinhmmhjmwmhuimiﬁmﬁskofcbmm in value,

Forﬂmpmpouofthnmwmmofcuhﬂowa.uﬁmdwheqdmhnﬁmhofmhwdlbo&ﬁmdapodu,u&ﬁmmwofmdmg
bmkovadraﬁsuﬂmyuemidaodminmﬂmofﬂuComnmy':mhmmwm

(19} Earnings per share
; s

Basicemﬁnpwrmisu}cuhmdbydividing: -
-!hcpmﬁtm'hmblcmmoﬂhe(:mnmy
-bymnwdghwdmtgcnumbudeqaﬁymwngdmﬂmﬁnmhlm,adjwﬂ:rbowsdmmuineguiuuhuuh&ueddtmgdw
year and exchuding treasury shares,

i
Dilmedmmmwmmeﬁmmhﬁwdemmm:ﬁmofhsﬁcmhammmbmimomm:
-mmmmmofmmmMMWwi&ﬁmﬁwmweqwmm
-thcwm’gkﬁedlmgzmmbarofxidiﬁmdequityahmumnwwmmebmmmdingmhgmmdmdihniwmmﬁdequhy
shares,

{F) Recent Promouncements

Ind AS 37~OnemusConnica-ComofFulﬁmng|Conm
Thcamcadmxlpeci&&azdmthe‘costofﬁﬂﬂlﬁng'thh‘mMWM&MW‘.ComMWMbA

h:dASiOQ«-AmunlImevvmendAS(Zml)
Thsmmdmemciurifiawhidafeumenﬁtyimlﬁuwhmhtppﬁumc '10 percent’ test of Ind AS Ewhmmehgwhcthcmdumgm‘scuw
litbﬁx'ty.MCmpmdmmtummmmmnmmhuunwﬁgniﬁcmhnmhmﬁnmcmmm.
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Note 2 : Investment Property

Rg. in Lakh
Particul March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 34.11 34.11
Additions - -
Closing gross carrying amount 34.11 34.11
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 7.04 6.16
Depreciation charge 0.88 0.88
Closing accumulated depreciation 7.92 7.04
Net carrying amount 26.19 27.07
(1) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties
Particul March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Rental income 10.80 10.80
Profit from investment properties before
depreciation 10.80 10.80
Depreciation 0.88 0.88
Profit from investment properties 9.92 9.92
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Note 3 : Loans {non-current) Rs. in Lakh
March 31, March 31,
e 2024 2023
Security deposits for utilities & premises - 10.12
TOTAL - 10.12
Note 4 : Trade recelvables
March 31, March 31,
Fukteniurs 2024 2023
Unsecured : Considered Good
- Related parties (Refer Note 19) . 5.29 9.21
- Other pearties -
TOTAL 529 9.21
Note 4.1: Trade Reccivables A pving Schedule
Trade Receivables Azciny Schedule for current veur Outstandin;: for followin: reriods from due date of payinent
Less than 6 6 months - 1-2 2-3; More than 3 Total
Undi:uted Trade receivables months 1 venr Y Vears Vears
— considered vood 529 5.29
— which have {onificant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
TOTAL 5.29 - - - - 5.29
Trade Receivables Agvine Schedule for previous veis Qutstan:iiny for followina reriods from due date of puviient
Less than 6|6 months - 1-2 2-3] More than 3 Total
Undi-poted Trade receivables months 1 year S OArs VEaTE YAy
— considered :ood 5.29 392 9.21
— which have «i:nificant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
TOTAL 5.29 392 - - - 9.21
Note 4.2: There are no Disputed Trade Receivables during the current year or earlier year.
Note § : Cash and cash cquivalents
March 31, March 31,
Luxticulars 2024 2023
Balances with Banks
- in Current Accounts 0.94 1.56
Cash on hand .
TOTAL 0.94 1.56
Note 6 - Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Bank deposit with maturity of less than 12 months at the balance sheet date 102.66 76.19
TOTAL 102.66 76.19
Note 7 : Income tax assets (net)
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Opening balance - 0.62 0.35
Less: Current tax payable for the year 3.66 2.67
Add: Texes paid (Net of refunds) 3.86 2.94
Add: Earlier year tex adjustment
Closing balance 0.82 0.62




Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note 8 : Other current assets

Particulars
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Prepaid expenses 0.92 1.38
TOTAL 0.92 138
Note 9 : Share Capital
March 31, March 31,
Particalars 2024 2023
8 Authorised :
60,000 (March 31, 2020 : 60,000) Equity shares of the
par value of INR 100 each 60.00 60.00
TOTAL 60.00 60.00
March 31, March 31,
Farticutary 2024 2023
b Jesued and Subscribed:
60,000 (March 31, 2020 : 60,000) Equity shares fully
paid up 60.00 60.00
TOTAL 60.00 60.00
¢ Reconcillation of number of equity shares cutstanding at the beginning and the end of the year :
Particalars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 60,000 60,000
Issued during the year '
Outstanding at the end of the year 60,600 60.000

d Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity shares
The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a per value of INR 100 each, Each equity shareholder is entitled to one
vote per share,

¢ _Shares of the compsn held by bolding / ultimate holding compansy

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Name of Shareholde d !

e e No of shares % Noofshares %
Astec LifeSciences Limited 39,380 65.63% 39,380 65.63%
(Immediate holding company)

f Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No of shares % % Change No of shares % % Change
Name of Shareholder during the during the
. year year
Astec LifeSciences Limited (holding Company) 39,380 65.63% - 39,380  65.63% -

M.C. Chemicals 20,000 33.33% - 20,000  33.33% -
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Note 10 - Other | quity

March 31, March 31,
Perticulars 2024 2023
Reserves & Surplus
Retained earnings 73.11 61.92
TOTAL 73.11 61.92

i} Retained Earnings

March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Opening balance i 61.90 53.52
Net profit for the period 11.21 8.40
Items of other comprehensive income recognised direclty in retained earnings
- Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax
Dividends paid (including dividend distribution tax)
Cloglng balance 73.11 61.90
Note 12 : Other current liabilities

March 31, March 31,
Farticulars 2024 2023
Other payables 0.13 0.77
TOTAL 0.13 0.77
Note 13 : Other Income

March 31, March31,
Particany 2024 2023
Other income - Recurring
Rental income 10.80 10.80
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost 6.02 2.39
TOTAL 16.82 13.19
Note 14 : Depreciation and ‘amorﬂndon exjenge

March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Depreciation expense 0.88 0.88
Depreciation of investment properties
Amortisation of intangible assets
TOTAL 0.88 0.88
Note 15 : Other Expenses

March 31, March 31,
i 2024 2023
Rent (Sub-letting Charges) 0.44 0.58
Rates and Taxes 0.04 0.09
Professional fees - 0.06 0.06
Payment to auditors (refer note 15(a) below) 0.30 0.30
Miscelleneous Expenses 0.13 0.06
TOTAL 0.96 1.09
Note 16 (a) : Details of payments to suditors
Payment to auditors
Audit fees 0.30 0.30
Tatal payments to auditors 0.30 0.30
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Note 11 : Deferred Tax Asset / (Liabilities)

Rs. in Lakh

Particolars March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Property, plant and equipment (3.59) (3.46)
Mat credit entitlement - -
Net deferred tax liabilitles {1.59) {146
Movement in deferred tax balances for the venr ended Mareh 31. 2024
Balance as at Recognised In . Balance as at
Particuiars April 1. 2023 profit or loss Tax for earlier years Net Deferred tax asset Deferred tax Hability March 31. 2024
Deferved tax asset
Property, plant and equipment (3.46) 0.12 0.12 3.59 (3.5
Mat Credit - - -
Tax assets / (Liabilities) {3.46) 0.12 0.12 3.59 (15
Balance as at Recognised in Balance as at
Particniars April1,2022  profitorloss | for carlieryears - Deferrid tuxstuet Delerred M TabiMy oo oreh 91, 2081
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equipment 3.31) 0.15 0.15 3.46 3.4
Mat Credit - - -
Tax assets / (Lisbilities) (331 0.15 0.15 346 (34

The company offiets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax lisbilities and the deferred tax sssets and deferred tax lisbilities relate to

income taxes levied by the same tax anthority.

Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred
income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income by each jurisdiction in which the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.
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Note 16 : Income tax expense

Thisnctcpmvidcanmlysiaofrthompuuy’ainoumcmxWe&wmm&mmmpiwddh&ﬂthﬂwmdhw&ehxmehmbynon—
assessable and non-deductible items.

(=) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Particulars . March 31 2024 March 31 2023
Current incoms tax
In respect of current year 3.66 267
Adjustments in respect of earlier years - -
TOTAL 3.66 2.67
Deferred income tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences i 0.11 0.15
; in §
Origination and reversal of temporery differences - -
Totsl deferred tax expense/(benefit) .11 0.15
Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 3.71 282
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indla's tax rate:
Profit before income tax expense 14.98 11.22
an 2.82

Expenses not allowed for tax purpose - =

TOTAL an 2,82
Adjustments in respect of earlier years - -
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit & Loss .71 2.82

The Company’s weighted average tax rates for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 were 25.17%.
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Note 17 : Earnings per share

Calenlation of weizhted averay« number of cqulis shares

Particulars
Merch 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares - Basic
(») Number of shares at the beginning of the year 60,000 60,000
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 60.000 60 000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 60.000 61.000
2 Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares - Diluted
(=) Number of shares at the beginning of the year 60,000 60,000
Effect of potential equity shares . u
Revised number of potential shares at the beginning of the year 60.000 60.000
(&) Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 60,000 60,000
Effect of potential equity shares -
Revised number of potential equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 60,000 60.000
Weighted average number of potential equity shares outstanding during the y 60.000 60.000
3 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Basic/diluted)
Profit (loss) for the year, attributable to the owners of the Company 11.21 8.40
4 Basic Eamings per share (Rs.) 18.69 14.00
5 Diluted Eamings per share (Rs.) 18.69 14.00
6 Nominal Value of Shares (Rs.) 10 10

Note 17.1  The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on profit attributed to equity shareholders and weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding after adjustments for the effects of all dilutive potential equity

Note 18 : Finsncial Ratios

Particulars March 31, 2024
March 31, 2023
(a) Current Ratio (refer note 18. 1) 9126 115.5
(b) Debt Equity ratio (refer note 18. 2) - -
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) (refer note 18. 3) - -
(&) Return on Equity Ratio (refer note 18. 4) 9% 0%
() Inventory turnover (refer note 18. 5) - -
63] Trade Receivables turnover ratio (refer note 18. 6) -
& Trade payables tumover ratio (refer note 18, 7) -
(h) Net capital turnover ratio (refer note 18. 8) -
(i) Net profit ratio (refer note 18. 9) - .
(4)] Return on Capital employed (refer note 18. 10) 11% 9%

Note 18. 1 Current ratio : Current assets / Current Habilities
The decrease in Current Ratio is due to increase in Current labilities.
Note 18.2 Debt Equity ratio : Total Debt/ Shareholder’s Equity

Note 18.3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio : (Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other
amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets/Investment etc.) / (Interest & Lease
Note 18.4 Return on Equity Ratio : Net Profits after taxes — Preference Dividend (if any) / Average Shareholder’s Equity

Note 18. 5 Inventory turnover : Cost of goods sold / Average Inventory

Note 18.6 Trade Receivables turnover ratio : Net Credit Sales / Average Trade Receivable
Note 18.7 Trade payables turnover ratio : Net Credit Purchases / Average Trade Payables

Note 18,8 Net capital turnover ratio : Net Sales / Working Capital
Note 18. 9  Net profit ratio : Net Profit / Net Sales

Note 18. 10 Retum on Capital employed : Earning before interest and taxes / (Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred
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Note 19 : Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Acconnting classification and fair values

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial linbilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below. It does not include the fair value information for financial assets
and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Currving amount {15, tn lakh?
Falr value Fair value

Notes through profit  thromgh  Amortised Cost Total
and loss OCI
3
Current Financial Assets
Trade receivables 4 - 529 529
Cash and cash equivalents » 5 - 0.94 0.94
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 102.66 102.66
108.89 108.89
Carrving amounnt (111, in lakh}
Fair valpe Fair value
As at March 31, 2023 Notes through profit thromgh  Amortised Cost Total
and loss OCl
3 - - 10.12 10.12
4 - - 921 9.21
Cash and cash equivalents 5 - 1.56 1.56
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 76.19 76.19

$7.08 97.08
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The carrying amount of rade receivables, trade payables and cash & cash equivalents are considered 0 be the same 85 their fair values, due to their short term aatare,
The carrying smount of secarity deposits are considered to be reasonable approximation of fair value,

During the reporting yeor ending Murch 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, there were no transfers between levels 1 and 7 Siir value measurements
The Compeny's policy is to recognise transfers inlo and tramsfers out of fir value hirerchy Jeved as at the end of reporting perfod.

Valuation technigue vsed to determine fudr value
Specific valuation technignes used to value finencial instruments inclode ©
- the fnir value of the remaining finsncial instraments is determined using disconnted cash flow snalysis,

i Finenclel risk management

The Company has exposure o the following risks arizing from fpancial instruments:
= Credit rigk

= Liguidity risk ; and

= Market risk

i. Risk manapgement framework

The Company’s business activities exposs it © a variety of financial risks, namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks. The Company's senior management has the oversll responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Company’s risk mansgement framework and is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies, These policies are established to identify and snalyse the
#isks faced by the Company, to set appropriste risk Hmits and controls and fo monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's activities, The Company, through its trrining and mensgement standards and procedures, sims fo maintain & disciplined and constructive control eavitonment in which all employess
understand their roles and obligations.
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Financizl instruments —~ Fair values and risk management (continned)
i. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another

financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient lquidity to meet its lizbilities when they are due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Exposure to Hguidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Contractual cash flows
As at March 31, 2024 Carrying amount ¢ E”“M_u o 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years wnemm.uwwu 8 Total
INR
Non-derivative financial Habilities
Trade and other payables
Contractual cash flows
As at March 31, 2023 Carrying amount  © E.HH_. o G 12months I12years 2.5 More B»H...B 5 —_—
INR
Non-derivative financial lisbilities

Trade and other payables
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

il Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans and
advances.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure;
Trade receivables and loans and advances,

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charucteristics of each customer and the
geography in which it operates. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal
course of business,

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is anslysed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Accordingly no
provision has been made on the same.

The company individually monitors the sanctioned credit limits as sgainst the outstanding balances. Accordingly, the
Company makes specific provisions against such trade receivables wherever required end monitors the same at periodic
intervals.

The Company monitors each loans and advances given and makes any specific provision wherever required.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade
receivables and loans and advances,

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by type of counterparty was as follows :

Carrying amount (I, in lakh)

Particulars Notes March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023

Financial Assets (Nom~current)
Loans

3 - 10.12

Financial Assets (Current)
Cash and cash equivalents 5 0.94 1.56
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 6 102.66 76.19

Trade and other receivables
Exports 4 - -
Domestic 4 5.29 9.21
108.89 97.08

Impairment - The ageing of trade receivables that were not impaired is as per Note 10. 1.
Management believes that the unimpaired amounts which are past due are collectible in full,

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company's held cash and cash equivalents of Rs 0.94 lakhs at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs 1.56 lakhs). The
cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit rating.

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that is past due but not impaired.
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Note 20 : Related party relationships, transactions and balances

Parties with whom the corpuny has entered
I Holding Company

Compan;
idiary of Godrej Industries Limited @G

2 Fellow subsidizries
A. Subsidiaries of Astec LifeSclences
{. Comerciglizadora Agricola

3 Key mansgerial personnel
Aghok Hiremath (Director)
Balram 8. Yadav (Director)
Arijit Mukherjes (Director)
Anurag Roy (Director) (w.e.£ 26/10/2021)

Limited (ASTEC):
Agroastrachem Cia Ltda

4 Transsetions with related parties

y. Astec LifeSciences Limited is a subs
E).GILi:ﬂzeUlﬁmbeHoldingCompmyoﬂhoConqany.

inmumum’omduringﬂxcm'iodwhsmm&olexim

idiary of Godrej Agrovet

The follosw iy transactions occurred with related i« Rs. n lnkh

Particnlars Relationshup March 31. 2024 | March 31 2023

Rental income

Astec LifeSciences Limited Holding Compeany 10.80 10.80

Expeases Charged to /

Relmbursement made by other

companies

Astec LifeSciences Limited Holding Company 1176 2,03
5 Qutstanding balances of related parties

) Rs. in lakh

Partieulsrs Relationshi;, March 312024 | March 31. 2023

Trade recelvables

Agtec LifeSciences Limited Holding Company 529 921

6 Terms and Conditions

mmcﬁmmhﬁngmdiﬁdendswmmﬁemmmdmdﬁcmmnmappﬁodmo&amm.

Lomh’ﬁmnxclmdpuﬁummﬂly

All the outstanding balances are

repayeble on demand st interest rates of 8% to 12
and on st arm's length baais.

unsecursd and are repayable in cash.

%pcrlnnum.AlImhcrmnmﬁmwmmldeon
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Note 21: Capital Management

a) Risk Management

The Company’s policy is to ggmggggggggggm%%, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business, Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary
sharcholders.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of *adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total liabilities, comprising inferest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises of all
components of equity other then amounts sccummulated in the effective portion of cash flow hedges and cost of hedging.

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at March 31, 2024 was as follows.

Rs. in Iskh
Particulars March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Total Borrowings - -
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 0.94 1.56
Adjuosted net debt (8.94) {1.56}
Tatal equity 133.11 121.92
Adjusted net debt to total equity ratio 10.01 {0.01)
b) Dividends
Particnlars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

() Dividend not recognised at the end of the reporting period

The directors have recommended the payment of a Final dividend of Nil per fully paid equity
share (March 31, 2023 - Nil). This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of
shareholders in the ensuing anmual general meoting.

Note 21: Segment Reporting ,
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
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Note 22 : Contingent Habflities

Rs. in lakh

Particulars

Murel 31,2024

March 37, 1023

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts;
P(i) Income tax
(8} Pending before AO

3.29

3.29




